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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the prohibition of powdered alcohol products. 

Minutes: Testimony 1, Handout #2, Testimony #3 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Opened the hearing with testimony in support. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: (See Testimony #1) (Handout #2) (1 :23-6:46) (Handout #2) 

Rep. Lois Delmore: Is there a taste to this? 

Rep. Mitskog: I have not tasted this. I don't know. That is the risk. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: It isn't available right now anywhere, but it is coming with marketing. 
Is that what you are saying? 

Rep. Mitskog: Yes. Some things have slowed it down. The alcohol and tobacco and trade 
bureau had initially granted approval of this product last spring due to some technical error 
on the labeling so they pulled it within two weeks. I think that is what brought attention to 
this product nationally. 

Rep. L. Klemin: It seems like we have had this bill before here. How is different from 
somebody carrying a little shot of alcohol with them? 

Rep. Mitskog: What is different about this product is it is powdered and easier to conceal. 
Maybe the one that was in front of your before was the vaporized alcohol. 

Rep. L. Klemin: Your focus seems to be on youth. This would prohibit anybody from using 
this. I could go to jail for a Class 8 misdemeanor why should I be prohibited from using this 
if I canted to? 
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Rep. Mitskog: In my studies of this product I would encourage you to do on line checking 
because it doesn't taste quite as good as our regular alcohol. The Attorney General hasn't 
even classified this product yet. Something needs to be done to protect our youth. 

Rep. L. Klemin: Exceptions in this bill? What is a state institution and why should they be 
able to use a controlled and why should a state institution be able to use this powdered 
alcohol product if no one else can? 

Rep. Mitskog: This would not be good at our state institutions of higher education to have 
this made available for that exception. I believe it is for educational purposes and research. 

Rep. L. Klemin: Private College or University of the University of Mary can have this, but I 
can't. Is that rational research? 

Rep. Mitskog: You have pointed out some language that should maybe be corrected in 
this bill. 

Rep. Maragos: If you make something illegal then the kids will pay extravagant prices for 
it. Every time we make something illegal in the state. I am bothered by the idea that every 
time we make something illegal if the substance finds itself into the state then we have set 
up a cottage industry. Then we have to try to catch these people and then we have to put 
them into jail; wouldn't you believe we should probably authorize it and regulate it just like 
regular alcohol and then we could regulate and track it? 

Rep. Mitskog: I would argue that this product is being marketed to our underage 
consumers. 

Rep. Maragos: What happens if it is legal to purchase palcohol in if they cross the borders 
because it is legal there? 

Rep. Mitskog: That would be an issue. We are seeing that with other substances now. 

Rep. Mary Johnson: I see your concern. It is the convenience of this that could cause this 
product. 

Rep. K. Wallman: If I were to go to palcohol.com will I be able to order it on line to my 
house? 

Rep. K. Hawken: Our alcohol taxing laws are significant. If it were regulated would that be 
helpful in keeping it out? If you order wine on a website it will tell you what states if can 
ship to. They can't ship to every state because of their laws. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: Date rape drug was discussed here a long time ago. Have you 
looked at the research on some different things that we have regulated and outlawed 
because in other states and countries there have been instances on this. 

Rep. Mitskog: In your packet it will give you a bit of history on powered alcohol we need to 
get something defined on this subject. I don't have specifics on adverse events that have 
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surrounded the substance. There is probably going to be an online market and I would be 
open to anything to regulate this product. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: It is not a new idea. Looking at the handouts do you have any 
information from those states that have been attempting on the success or failure of their 
efforts? 

Rep. Mitskog: It took off within the last 12 months. Utah and Vermont had drafted early 
legislation regarding this. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: In your handout it says California in 1 978 adopted regulations 
on powdered distilled spirits and they regulate and tax it and Alaska in 1 980 passed a law 
that says substance having alcohol content and intended for human consumption may not 
be sold in this state unless in liquid form so they outlawed it. In those state how that is 
working? 

Rep. Mitskog: I can certainly attempt to get more information from those states that have 
been using these laws. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Legislative Counsel or the Attorney General can probably help 
you. 

Rep. Maragos: You should look at some fashion of making it a regulatory environment 
where it is controlled and taxed and regulated and someone has to be responsible for it just 
like we do with regular alcohol. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: That maybe a good way to kill the industry too. 

Kurt Snyder, Executive Director, Heartview Foundation: (See testimony #3) (28:22-
33:20) Changing the container you could lose the directions when you mix this. I am very 
concerned about the form this is. Also I am worried about the available and the effects it will 
have on a person. I do encourage you to support this bill. 

Rep. Maragos: We are a small state so when we are analyzing statistics. In your 
profession of addiction concerning how do we rate with all the other drugs per capita. Are 
we also the largest consumer of meth, or heroin per capita? What is it about the data that 
can help us address these problems? 

Kurt Snyder: Those are great questions. ND continues to lead the nation is binge drinking 
is cultural. We have rural and frontier status and they struggle to maintain stores, but 
almost every small town in N D  has one bar on this corner and another one in the other 
corner. It is part of our social fabric. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: You talked about the different forms of alcohol and ingestion . 

Kurt Snyder: I don't have extensive knowledge on this particular thing. I can talk about 
alcohol 
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Rep. Lois Delmore: Rep. Mitskog made a statement that the 
powder seem to appeal to the youth the way it does? 

Do you know why the 

Kurt Snyder: It is a ritual and an enjoyment out of that you will not see the population 
change and approach this at all. Alcohol is kind in N D. It far surpasses all other drugs. 
Accessibility is one of the things. The changing of the form is my biggest issue with this. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: In your testimony you talked about the different forms of 
ingestion and the different ways the body absorbed them and reacts to them. Do you know 
any information about this powders alcohol? 

Kurt Snyder: There are different ways of how people ingest it that give a quicker and more 
profound effect. Some of them are obscene. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: I respect a lot of what you have done with addiction issues etc. Rep. 
Mitskog made a very interesting statement when she said that the powder probably would 
not appeal as much to adults as it would to young adults. Do you know anything about why 
it is the powders form seems to appeal to the youth in the way it does? 

Kurt Snyder: Most people who drink alcohol in a social manner have their night cap or 
social drink at 5:00; it is a ritual and a certain kind they like and the way they do it and there 
is a real enjoyment out of that and you take that and put it into a powdered form and it 
tastes different and doesn't quite have that affect you are not going to see that population 
change or approach that at all. The youth will like this because of accessibility. 

Rep. Maragos: As a professional addiction counselor do you get data that compared ND 
nationally that might describe us as compulsive society? 

Pam Sagness, Department of Human Services: When we look at the national rates and 
compare them to the state rate; population is considered they have to be comparable so 
most of our rates are 100,000 per 1,000. It depends on what we are looking at. The 
question is there something specific about N D  on why we see the rates we do. Our illegal 
drug rates are lower and some of the lowest among the national rate. We are seeing 
increases for prescription drugs and heroin so I don't want to minimize that issue. Alcohol 
is the primary issue in N D. Referred the handout yesterday. When you look at our youth 
data in ND we have higher alcohol rates in rural areas, but urban areas also have high 
rates. Contributing factors to the state is the rural culture and then there also things that 
are imbedded in who we are. Celebrating weddings and there is a bit of work hard play 
hard mentality. 

Opposition: None 

Neutral: None 

Hearing closed. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman reopened the hearing on HB1464. 

Tom Trenbeath: Would it be nice to get ahead of the game. We don't have any objections 
to the bill other than as you get down into it some of the exceptions might be tuned more. 
This is a bill that would ban it. The alternative if you wanted to control it would be a bill to 
license and regulate it. They both have their dangers for abuse in either instance. You 
could just redefine alcoholic beverage to include this; which it doesn't now. 

Rep. L. Klemin: Why shouldn't I be able to buy dry mix alcohol that I just add water to and 
I have the same thing? 

Tom Trenbeath: I think fear is that it will do other things in this form. 

Rep. L. Klemin: There are all kinds of products that people could snort like paint and we 
don't ban people from buying paint. 

Tom Trenbeath: That is a good point. That is why I think the Legislature would want to 
weigh the advantages and disadvantages of regulating it or banning it. 

Rep. K. Hawken: We talked about that this morning. In some or the research we got I 
believe it was Alaska that it could only be sold in liquid form. If we go down the regulation 
path how do we go down that path? 

Tom Trenbeath: That is hard. Look at the years we have had the war on drugs. Would it 
have been better to regulate in the beginning rather than outlaw and prosecute? I don't 
know. 

Rep. Brabandt: Haven't we spent $4-$5 Trillion in enforcement in the last 40 years? 
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Tom Trenbeath: That sounds
'
reasonable. 

Rep. Brabandt:  How do you inject? 

Rep. Lois Delmore: Yes you can add water to it. It is my understanding that right now the 
law says sales of alcohol is liquid. Right now for ttre sales of alcohol it does say liquid. 

Tom Trenbeath: The only reasonable interpitation is it is talking about a liquid form. 

Rep. G. Paur: Would it make sense to draw up two amendments. One which would make 
powdered alcohol and if we pass it then have another amendment to fix these other things 
and then do with the remaining bill as we wish. It would give us the option of either putting 
it under the alcohol criteria or to address it separately. 

Tom Trenbeath: They equally effective 

Rep. D. Larson: I don't like powdered milk so it seems to me if this were to become legal 
that there may not be much of a market here for it and it would be in the stores maybe not 
many would want to use it? 

Tom Trenbeath: The potential for outdoors people that maybe a use for it. 

Rep. P. Anderson: How are they going to find this? I can see this powdered alcohol being 
everywhere. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: We asked Rep. Mitskog Is there any way we can get 
information 

Tom Trenbeath: We did put some of that information on line so it did come through our 
office. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: If the FDA did approve it would it be legal here? Discussed the 
handout. Several states are working on this. 

Tom Trenbeath: Some of the information you have come through our office. 

Rep. Brabandt: Where is it made? 

Tom Trenbeath: The FDA approved it for two weeks and then they found out they had 
made a mistake and they rescinded it. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: In your opinion if the FDA did approve it would it be legal in ND 
because it  doesn't fall into the liquor statue. 

Rep. Brabandt: Where is this stuff made? 

Tom Trenbeath: I have no idea. I believe it came from Europe. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: Do you know the consequences of this product in your body? 

Tom Trenbeath: It might hasten another drug that is commonly injected if you were to mix 
the two. I have no idea and I suggested no one knew what heroin would do either before 
they started doing it either. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: Would you be willing to work with some people from this committee?? 

Tom Trenbeath: Yes I would be happy to do that. 

Hearing closed 

Subcommittee: Rep. D. Larson: Rep. Brabandt: Rep. Lois Delmore: 
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sed amendment #1 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Opened discussion on HB 1464. This is a reengrossed bill 
correct? This is not an amendment. (Attachment # 1 )  

Rep. D. Larson: This is an amendment and I would wish to move them. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: If you're going to move this amendment, I will ask out intern to 
prepare this as a Hog House, which would say remove, everything after a bill and insert the 
following. 

Representative Delmore : Seconded the motion. 

Representative Larson: I should also mention I spoke with Representative Mitskog about 
this amendment and though she prefers all the things she had in her bill, she is not 
opposed and understand that this is probably the best first step of getting something in the 
books regarding powdered alcohol. As the committee may remember, when Karen was 
here from Bismarck, I asked her if she had heard of this powdered alcohol and she said yes 
and that the kids with their social media have talked about it; but she hasn't seen any. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: So the effect of this would be that powdered alcohol would be 
regulated just like regular alcohol. So I would assume someone needs a liquor license in 
order to sell it and purchase it. 

Representative Mary Johnson: Did you have any discussion about FDA? It was my 
understanding that the F DA hasn't approved this yet, so whatever you do, or will you allow 
the sale of it without FDA approval? How will that work? 

Representative Larson: We did not discuss the FDA, my assumption that it will not be 
approved for sale unless they do. I thought that Representative Mitskog had mentioned but 
I would be mistaken. 
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Representative Klemin: It is my understanding that if this substance is required to have 
FDA approval it will not be sold in retail in North Dakota until it gets it, but once it does get it 
we have the mechanism in place to regulate it. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: So what the bill would also do, is since it changes in our current 
statute any liquid suitable for drinking, it changes the alcoholic beverage definition to any 
substance. So if someone were to try to sell this in North Dakota without the approval they 
could go after them for violation of these laws? 

Representative Mary Johnson: I am going to resist this motion because it is the portability 
of this powder. Polls were taken in the Grand Forks Herald and 66.76% of them wanted it 
banned. 

Representative K. Wallman: I don't know what Yz of 1 % of alcohol is? Does this count for 
mouth wash? 

Representative G. Paur: Current law . . .  (Microphone not on) 

Representative Lois Delmore: The Attorney's General office is interested in this. Wither ban 
it or regulate it. The Attorney General thought just put it under under regulation so there 
would be an enforcement measure. Then it would have something with some teeth. I think 
it is a good solution to looking at what could be coming down the pipe. Banning it 
sometimes only glamorizes it. I think it is a good solution as to what could be coming. 

Representative Brabandt: Banning anything will create another prohibition scenario 
because they will get it so regulate it and be done with it. 

Representative Klemin: Are we discussing a motion to amend? 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Yes, the bill bands it and the amendment would regulate it. 
Although it is banned until the FDA approves it. 

Representative K. Wallman: Are we actually including things that we don't intend to? Is 
everybody fine with this language? Alcoholic beverage means any substance suitable for 
ingestion by human beings which contains Yz of 1 % or more by alcohol by volume. I don't 
know what that means. Representative Delmore's point is that this only addresses things 
that are already but that are not how I read it. 

Representative Lois Delmore: That Yz of 1 % is already in there so they wanted to make it 
the same because it is already in law. 

Representative Paur: I am repeating what Representative Delmore said and I concur what 
she said about it. 

Representative Kretschmar: We are amending a section of the alcoholic beverages for the 
liquids but we are seeing Yz of 1 % of alcohol by volume and that is generally a liquid 
measure. How would you have Yz of 1 % of volume of alcohol in an envelope? It should be 
by some other measure. 
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Chairman K. Koppelman: If it is a percentage, if it is meant to be diluted is this how it 
works? Do they dilute the powder? If they dilute it with water it would be even less in the 
diluted form than it is in the concentrated form. 

Rep. Mary Johnson: You can still measure the volume of a solid I believe. In the other 
sections Rep. D. Larson that the amendment addresses there are exclusions for Nyquil, 
vanilla extract, those other things. 

Rep. D. Larson: I would assume so, Tom from the Attorney General's office has a lot of 
knowledge about this and these are his words so I assume that is covered because it is 
already not illegal for you to drink some Nyquil at bedtime if you have a cold. I am 
assuming that is already covered. 

Chairman K. Koppelman: Who ever carries this bill you need to visit about some of these 
questions. 

A Voice Vote Was Taken: All in favor 

The bill was amended 

Representative Delmore: Move a do pass as amended 

Representative Larson: Seconded 

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: Yes 1 1 , No 2, Absent 0 

Motion carries 

Representative Larsen will carry the bill 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1464 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 2 of section 5-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to 
the definition of alcohol. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 5-01-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. "Alcoholic beverages" means any *ttffGsubstance suitable for 
drinkingingestion by human beings, which contains one-half of one percent 
or more of alcohol by volume." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0889.01001 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1464: Judiciary Committee (Rep. K. Koppelman, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS 
(11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). HB 1464 was placed on the 
Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and 
reenact subsection 2 of section 5-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating 
to the definition of alcohol. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 5-01-01 of the North 
Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

2. "Alcoholic beverages" means any ~substance suitable for 
drinkingingestion by human beings, which contains one-half of one 
percent or more of alcohol by volume." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Minutes: 

Ch. Hogue: We will open the hearing on HB 1464. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: Sponsor, support (see attached #1, #2). 

Ch. Hogue: Did your original bill call for a ban of this substance. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: Yes, it did. 

Ch. Hogue: So we're just changing the definition of "alcoholic beverages" to 
include powder or liquid. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: In my early meetings with the Attorney General and his 
assistant, they were very encouraged that we would be acting in advance of 
the introduction of this product. They said it would be really refreshing to be 
out in front of something, rather than having to react. They told me that they 
would support a ban but they'd like to see it classified, if nothing else. I think 
that is what the House Judiciary Committee did. They classified it and put it 
under the regulation of other alcohol products. 

Ch. Hogue: It actually contains alcohol. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: Yes. 

Sen. Grabinger: Doing this, it would still be legal to use for people over the 
age of 21 in North Dakota, correct. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: Yes, that is what the current language states that it would 
be classified and then is used for 21 years and older. 
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Sen. Nelson: So if kids were caught sneaking them in to athletic events, they 
would be punished just as they would by sneaking in a beer, etc. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: Yes. I think this product is unlike any other alcoholic 
product because the risk of concealment and the ease of concealing it. It 
could be smuggled in. 

Ch. Hogue: Is this a product being sold by our alcohol retailers. 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: Currently this product is not available yet. That's what is 
unique about this. The manufacturer of the Palcohol, the LipSmart Company 
they are anticipating the release of it in 2015. They did have a hang up at the 
federal level with the labeling and packaging. 

Sen. Luick: What was the pushback in the House Judiciary Committee, why 
wouldn't they just take the bill as it was and ban the substance, for what it is? 
Did you get an idea about the contention there? 

Rep. Alisa Mitskog: I don't have a clear explanation of why this was amended, 
other than the prohibition of alcohol. If the prohibition had remained in the bill, 
it probably wouldn't have passed the House. 

Ch. Hogue: Thank you. Further testimony in support. 

Sen. Jon Casper: Co-sponsor, support. This bill is to protect children. The 
way the NDCC is written, with regard to regulating alcohol in the state of ND, 
we call it a beverage. So this is powder; if you notice the way the bill is now, 
having been amended, they changed the language to substance and 
ingestion, so that this would fall under current law. Currently, if would take no 
action, you could sell this anywhere. You wouldn't have to be licensed; you 
could sell the product at Stop and Go to an 8 year old. We need to prevent 
that from happening, stop the availability. I think there is a risk of these 
products getting into the schools and to our children. The packet looks no 
different than a Kool-Aid packet that a young person might be familiar with. 

Ch. Hogue: You've seen the packaging, if it's not available how do we know 
what the packaging looks like. 

Sen. Casper: It's on-line. 
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Ch. Hogue: Thank you. Further testimony in support. Testimony in 
opposition. 

Pat Ward, ND Wholesale Liquor Dealers Association: Opposed. We support 
the concept in HB 1464 of defining these powdered alcohol substances as 
alcoholic beverages, so they can be licensed and taxed similar to other 
alcohol related products. However, we would prefer to see these substances 
banned altogether. I think we would be the ones that would have to ensure 
compliance and collect the tax and put these on the shelves. We have 
concerns about the consequences of these products. It is very easy to hide 
them and they may get into the hands of under-age kids; either by shipping 
directly or smuggle it out in your pocket. Alcohol is basically taxed by volume. 
You can make it very concentrated. I think the original bill was intended to 
ban these products all together. That's been happening in a lot of states. This 
is a hot issue in many states and the two largest wholesalers in ND are 
Johnson Brothers and Republic. We bring most of the wine into the state, 
most of the liquor into the state, and we collect the taxes, put it on the shelves, 
we get it to the retailers through our three tier system. We were concerned 
about how this product is going to be marketed and distributed. Whether it's 
going to bypass the three tier system, whether there are going to be ways that 
under-age individuals can get ahold of it. I think ND should join in the states 
that are banning the substances. We feel that, at least this bill is better than 
not regulating it at all. We would prefer to see it completely banned. 

Ch. Hogue: He said the product is available on-line. 

P. Ward: That's what I am hearing. I believe it can be shipped, just like you 
can ship wine or other products. With the wine, it is pretty obvious what's in 
that package when the UPS comes and it's in a big package and heavy, that 
they are required to check the age of the person receiving it, just like a 
bartender would be required to card someone. I don't think you're going to 
have that protection because this can be disguised in the packaging. If it 
comes in a regular box, it could be a small packet, or a box of small packages. 

Ch. Hogue: Is your testimony in opposition to this bill because it doesn't go far 
enough. 

P. Ward: Yes. It would be in opposition to the bill because it doesn't go far 
enough. 
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Sen. Nelson: So you'd prefer what MN, NY, NJ, and several other states have 
done and make it is unlawful "to possess, purchase, sell, offer to sell, or use 
powdered alcohol". 

Mr. Ward: Yes, that would be a better result. Even though we stand to be 
involved in the process under this current bill, we feel that would be a better 
course of action. 

Ch. Hogue: Thank you. We will close the hearing. 
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D Conference Committee 
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Minutes: 

Ch. Hogue: Let's take a look at HB 1464. 

Sen. Casper: Explained the amendment (see attached #1 ). Based on 
testimony yesterday, the decision before the committee is a policy decision of 
whether or not we take this new product, powdered alcohol. One right now, 
the feds through the Dept. of Treasury are regulating this and they haven't 
allowed a label so the label and the approval for the packaging need to go 
through the federal government and it hasn't been approved. So this isn't 
getting sold anywhere in the United States right now because of federal law. 
However, they are working on moving that forward and I think another point 
that wasn't brought up yesterday that's important, is the difference between 
powdered substance and a liquid substance. A power substance can be 
snorted, as opposed to drinking regular alcohol which goes through your 
digestive system, where something being snorted is going directly to your 
bloodstream. My main concern is younger people getting this and taking it 
into places they shouldn't be and ingesting it that way. I think that at this time, 
the policy decision that came from the House, we would make powdered 
alcohol comply with our liquor laws in the state; you have to be 21 and all 
other laws we have regarding liquor. Right now, the way is written, alcohol is 
defined as a beverage or a liquid, so powdered alcohol would come in 
underneath that and the law wouldn't apply to it. So instead of liquid, it's a 
substance instead of drink. We'd be banning the substance, powdered 
alcohol in ND. The amendment would ban the substance. I think we should 
pass the amendment and as this product comes to market and used other 
places, and the proponents think it is something we should have here in the 
state; they can come back to us two years from now and tell us how it's 
working other places and what they are doing for safety. 
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Ch. Hogue: You are on the original bill, can you explain the exceptions in 
subsection 4. Why do we make exceptions if the intent is to ban the use, 
possession and consumption of the product? 

Sen. Casper: I don't know if I have an exact answer for that. I know this is put 
together in conjunction with the AG's office and I think this mirrors other laws 
that are happening around the state/country. I don't know if anyone is 
researching this product at any of our state institutions, investigation, testing, 
and lab work being done. It is in other places. If our state colleges or 
businesses want to study the substance, this will allow that. 

Sen. Armstrong: Yes, they are all for research. 

Ch. Hogue: When I see the college or university, I immediately thought of the 
fraternities. That's not why you are putting that in there. 

Sen. Nelson: I still have a problem with 4b and 4c. I understand the health 
providers and the pharmaceutical companies. The way it is written, you could 
use it up at the Univ of Mary or Jamestown College, or a state institution, how 
broad is that, do they mean the State Hospital or any institution of higher ed. 

Sen. Casper: I think the way this is drafted, it has to be used by the institution. 
Students aren't going to be able to use powdered alcohol if this became law. 
The institution was using it. 

Ch. Hogue: All of them would be using it for research. 

Sen. Casper: That's my understanding, yes. We could add the word 
"research" in there. 

Ch. Hogue: The word research in 4a for healthcare providers. 

Sen. Armstrong: There is a drafting issue here because is it a semi-colon or a 
colon after (a). I think the word "for research" in #4 and that would cover all 
subsections. I move the amendment 15.0889.02001 as further amended. 

Sen. Grabinger: Second the motion. 

Ch. Hogue: We will take a voice vote. Motion carried. We now have the bill 
before us as amended. 
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Sen. Armstrong: I move a Do Pass as amended. 

Sen. Luick: Second the motion. 

6 YES 0 NO 0 ABSENT DO PASS AS AMENDED 

CARRIER: Sen. Casper 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1464 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the prohibition of 
powdered alcohol products. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. Section 5-01 -22 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

5-01-22. Powdered alcohol products prohibited - Penalty - Exceptions . 

.1. As used in this section . "powdered alcohol product" means any alcohol 
prepared or sold in a powder form for either direct use or reconstitution in a 
liquid beverage or food . 

£. A person may not sell. offer to sell. purchase. offer to purchase, possess. 
or consume a powdered alcohol product. 

~ A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor. 

~ This section does not apply to the use of powdered alcohol products by a: 

~ Health care provider that operates primarily for the purpose of 
conducting scientific research ; 

~ State institution; 

~ Private college or university ; or 

~ Pharmaceutical or biotechnology company." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0889.02001 
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1464 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the prohibition of 
powdered alcohol products. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. Section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

5-01-22. Powdered alcohol products prohibited - Penalty - Exceptions . 

.L As used in this section. "powdered alcohol product" means any alcohol 
prepared or sold in a powder form for either direct use or reconstitution in a 
liquid beverage or food. 

2. A person may not sell. offer to sell. purchase. offer to purchase, possess, 
or consume a powdered alcohol product. 

3. A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor. 

4. This section does not apply to the use of powdered alcohol products for 
research by a: 

a. Health care provider that operates primarily for the purpose of 
conducting scientific research; 

~ State institution; 

c. Private college or university; or 

d. Pharmaceutical or biotechnology company." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0889.02002 
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Insert LC: 15.0889.02002 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
HB 1464, as engrossed: Judiciary Committee (Sen. Hogue, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended , recommends DO PASS 
(6 YEAS , 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed HB 1464 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the prohibition 
of powdered alcohol products. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. Section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code is created 
and enacted as follows: 

5-01-22. Powdered alcohol products prohibited - Penalty - Exceptions . 

.1- As used in this section, "powdered alcohol product" means any alcohol 
prepared or sold in a powder form for either direct use or reconstitution in 
a liquid beverage or food . 

2. A person may not sell, offer to sell, purchase, offer to purchase, possess, 
or consume a powdered alcohol product. 

~ A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor. 

1:. This section does not apply to the use of powdered alcohol products for 
research by a: 

9_,, Health care provider that operates primarily for the purpose of 
conducting scientific research; 

!:L State institution; 

~ Private college or university; or 

Q,, Pharmaceutical or biotechnology company." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to the prohibition of powdered alcohol products. 

Minutes: 

Rep. Larson, (Chair): Opened the conference committee meeting on HB 1464. 
All members were present. Does the Senate want to explain why they didn't like the bill? 

Senator Casper: There are two positions here. Our reading of what was sent over was 
that powdered alcohol is or alcohol is called palcohol for simplicity here. That legislation 
would fall under our other liquor licensing and liquor beverage laws so it would be illegal to 
sell in ND would fall under the code that is there and existing that is used to sell other liquor 
in the state. The Senate took the position that it would be illegal to sell palcohol in ND. This 
is a new product and something not being sold any other place in the country. Because it is 
new and could be easily accessible by people under the legal drinking age we thought it 
would be sensible for us to favor prohibition. If the folks want to come back two years from 
now they could do that. The wholesale distributions are opposed to having the legislation 
the way it came over from the House. They would rather probation rather than legalization. 

Rep. D. Larson: The Houses version was put in that there were strong feelings that some 
on our committee that this should be regulated and taxed. I spoke with some of our 
committee members yesterday and Rep. Maragos felt it should be regulated and taxed. 
Rep. Mitskog was the prime sponsor and several pages from NCSL talking about how 
many states are looking at prohibiting it. This information has that some are prohibiting it 
and some are regulating it. There are only six that have actually even passed both 
chambers and been made law to prohibit it. So there is a feeling from our committee that 
there should be something we should not be just outlawing it. There is new information 
here and I think there is information that makes us think we should prohibit it. I t  does 
create a situation where it could lead to abuse and people bringing palcohol it into sporting 
events where alcohol would be prohibited and mixing it with water etc. We do recognize 
there are several reasons why this would be hard to control. Kids are well aware of this on 
the internet. We did have several people on our committee that felt in two years when 
there is more information about this we could look at it. 
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Rep. Lois Delmore: Alcohol wholesalers are not interested in this product. Now I would 
lean toward banning it. When we heard the bill on the House side the attorney general was 
very clear. You can do one or the other; either will work and states are doing both. 

Rep. D. Larson: That is where we got the language for the bill we engrossed and passed 
to the Senate. Where did you get the language for the amended language? 

Senator Casper: That came from the original 1000 version of the bill. It was with 
legislative counsel so I don't have an explanation beyond that. It was fashioned off other 
states. 

Senator Luick: I feel we are in better position to prohibit it now. I think we should see 
where we are at in two years. 

Motion Made by Rep. Paur that the House accede to the Senate Amendments. 
Seconded by Senator Nelson. 

Discussion: 

Rep. D. Larson: I think both sides of this have really been debated in both of our 
committees. I don't think we feel real strongly and that is the side we came down on. 

Senator Casper: I think both positions are valid. I would rather put the burden of folks to 
come here and say this is taking place other places and it is working well. 

Senator Luick: I stand for that point too. We need to stand on caution side; especially 
dealing with children and the availability of abuse in this condition and just don't need to go 
there. 

Rep. Lois Delmore: That will provide us some time to see what this product really does 
and it is a way for us to do a little wait and see where it is going to go next. 

Rep. D. Larson: The hospitality concerns were not something that weighed heavily with 
me. I did think I needed to carry out committees stand to this committee and I will support 
the motion as well. 

Adjourned. 
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Roll Call Vote#: 1 

D HOUSE accede to Senate Amendments and further amend 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments 
D SENATE recede from Senate amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motion Made by: _R_e~p_. _P_a_u_r _______ Seconded by: Senator Nelson 

Representatives 4-21 Yes No Senators 4-21 Yes No 

Rep D. Larson (Chair) x x Senator Casper x x 
Rep. G. Paur x x Senator Luick x x 
Rep. L. Delmore x x Senator C. Nelson x x 
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REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
HB 1464, as engrossed : Your conference committee (Sens. Casper, Luick, Nelson and 

Reps. Larson, Paur, Delmore) recommends that the HOUSE ACCEDE to the Senate 
amendments as printed on HJ page 1003 and place HB 1464 on the Seventh order. 

Engrossed HB 1464 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 
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Testimony for HB 1 464 House Jud iciary Com m ittee 

January 28, 201 5 

Rep. Al isa Mitskog, District 25 

Good Morning Chairman Koppelman & J ud iciary Comm ittee 
Mem bers, 

For the record, my name is Al isa M itskog, I'm honored to represent 
District 25 and I l ive in Wahpeton. I work in the health care industry 
as a ch iropractor and I am the mother of three col lege age daughters. 

HB b i l l  1 464 wou ld prohib it the sale and possession of powdered 
alcohol in North Dakota for human consumption. 

I had not heard of powdered alcohol unti l recently. After learning 
more about the product I grew concerned about the potential ly  
negative aspects of th is substance, which is marketed under the 
name of Palcohol .  

In my written testimony, I have provided information that was 
presented at the National Conference of State Legislatures fal l  forum. 
In the handout you can learn about the h istory of powdered alcohol 
and the specific science beh ind the manufacturing of the substance. 
Briefly, powdered alcohol or Palcohol is a chemical ly derived 
powdered prod uct that is packaged in a sealable pouch that is the 
equ ivalent of a shot of alcohol and comes i n  vod ka, rum and mixed 
drink flavors such as cosmopol itan, moj ito, margarita and lemon 
drop. When the powder is m ixed with 5-6 oz of water or another l iq uid 
it becomes an alcohol ic  drink. It has also been suggested that 
Palcohol can also be sprinkled and added to food. 

n 1  

Palcohol was developed by an Arizona-based company, Lipsmark. In 
earlier marketing the company touted the benefits of th is product 
which inc luded the convenience of taking this product camping and 
h ik ing and taking it into stadi ums to avoid having to pay for h igh price 

-, 
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alcohol ic beverages. Snorting the su bstance for a q u ick buzz has also 
been mentioned in earl ier marketing on the Palcohol site. The 
manufacturer has stated on its website that the product wi l l  be 
available in the Spring of 201 5. 

There are a num ber of concerns that exist with th is product. 

F irst being the ease of concealment. This product could very easily be 
concealed and brought into schools and youth events. It cou ld be 
added to other alcohol ic beverages to enhance the alcohol ic content 
or it could be added to energy drinks. And possi b ly more alarming is 
the potential for th is product to be snorted , which cou ld produce a 
very q u ick and toxic effect. 

The potential for underage consumption and abuse is very 
concerning . Underage alcohol consumption is already a big problem 
in our state. 

I would l i ke North Dakota to fol low what many other states-includ ing 
South Carol ina, Lou isiana, and Utah-have done or are in the process 
of doing by banning this substance. 

I wou ld l i ke us to be proactive rather than having to react to a problem 
in 2 years. 

Let's keep our youth safe. Please consider supporting th is important 
piece of legislation. 

Thank you .  

I stand for any q uestions. 

Pi � 
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Chairman Koppelman and Members of the House Judiciary, 

My name is Kurt Snyder and I am the Executive director of the Heartview Foundation. I am here to testify 

in support of HB 1464 on behalf of the Heartview Foundation, North Dakota Addiction Counselors 
Association and the North Dakota Addiction Treatment Providers Coalition. 

Deaths from overdose have been rising steadily over the past two decades and have become the leading 

cause of injury death in the United States. 1 Every day in the United States, 120 people die as a result of 
drug overdose, 2 and another 6, 7 48 are treated in emergency departments for the misuse or abuse of drugs. 

3 Nearly 9 out of 1 0  poisoning deaths are caused by drugs. 2 

The availability of the powdered form of alcohol or " palcohol" will exacerbate this epidemic. Overdoses are 

unintentional 8 1  % of the time. Most often it results from the use of pharmaceuticals. Individuals have a 
difficult time judging the safe amount and mix their drugs with alcohol or other drugs. Most consumers of 

alcohol understand their limit based upon the type or proof of the liquor and the number of drinks. When 

you change the form or method of ingestion, even the most experienced drinkers wil l  find it difficult to judge 
the safe amount. 

Finally, the population that I most concerned about is adolescents and children. As inexperienced users of 
alcohol, they already are at great risk for alcohol poisoning. I thank you for your time and encourage you to 

support HB 1 464. 

I would be happy to answer any questions you may have. 

Kurt A. Snyder 
Executive Director 
Heartview Foundation 
7 01 -426-8 677 
kurt@heartview:org 
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Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Web-based Injury Statistics Query and Reporting System (WIQARS) (online). (2014) Available from URI: f7J-A 
hltp:/lwww.ede.gov/injury/wisgars/fatal .html (http://www.cdc.gov/injury/wisgars/fatal.htmll. 

2 Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. National Vital Statistics System mortality data. (2015) Available from URL: 

http://www.cdc.gov/nchs/deaths.htm (http://www.cdc.gov/inchs/deaths.html. 

3 Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration . Highlights of the 2001 Drug Abuse 
Warning Network (DAWN) findings on drug related emergency department visits. The DAWN 
Report. Rockville , MD: US Department of Health and Human Services, Substance Abuse and 
Mental Health Services Administration ; 2013. Available from URL: 
http://www.samhsa.gov/data/2k13/DAWN 127 /sr127- (http://www.cdc.gov/Other/disclaimer.html) 
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Representative Mitskog 

Senator Casper 

HOUSE BILL NO. 1464 

1 A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact Subsection 2 of section 5-01-01 of the North 

2 Dakota Century Code, relating to the definition of alcohol. 

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

4 SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 5-01-01 of the North Dakota 

5 Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows: 

6 2. "Alcoholic beverages" means any ~substance suitable for drinking ingestion by 

human beings, which contains one-half of one percent or more of alcohol by volume. 

j 



use J ud iciary Com m ittee 

January 28, o-t 5  

Rep. Al isa Mitskog, District 25 

Good Morning Chairman Hogue & Senate Judiciary Committee 
Mem bers, 

For the record, my name is Al isa Mitskog, I represent District 25 and I 
l ive in Wahpeton. I work in the health care industry as a chiropractor 
and I am the mother of three col lege age daug hters. 

HB b i l l  1 464 wou ld prohibit the sale and possession of powdered 
alcohol in North Dakota for h uman consumption. 

I had not heard of powdered alcohol unti l  a few months ago. 

After learning more about the product I grew concerned about the 
potential ly negative aspects of this substance, which is marketed 
under the name of Palcohol .  

In my written testimony, I have provided information that was 
presented at the National Conference of State Legislatures fal l  forum. 
In the handout you can learn about the h istory of powdered alcohol 
and the specific science beh ind the manufacturing of the substance. 
Briefly, powdered a lcohol or Palcohol is a chem ical ly derived 
powdered product that is packaged in a sealable pouch that is the 
equ ivalent of a shot of alcohol and comes in vod ka, rum and mixed 
drink flavors such as cosmopol itan, moj ito, margarita and lemon 
drop. When the powder is m ixed with 5-6 oz of water or another l iquid 
i t  becomes an alcohol ic drink. It has also been suggested that 
Palcohol can also be sprinkled and added to food. 

Palcohol was developed by an Arizona-based company, Lipsmark. In 
earlier marketing the company touted the benefits of th is product 
which included the convenience of taking th is product camping and 
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h i king and taking i t  into stad iums to avoid having to pay for h igh price � I v\ 1 0  
alcohol ic beverages. Snorting the su bstance for a q u ick buzz has also 
been mentioned in earl ier marketing on the Palcohol site. The 
manufacturer has stated on its website that the product wi l l  be 
avai lable in the Spring of 201 5. 

There are a num ber of concerns that exist with th is prod uct. 

F irst being the ease of concealment. Th is prod uct could very easily be 
concealed and brought into schools and youth events. It cou ld be 
added to other alcohol ic beverages to enhance the alcohol ic content 
or it cou ld be added to energy drinks. And possibly more alarm ing is 
the potential for th is prod uct to be snorted , which could produce a 
very q u ick and toxic effect. 

The potential for underage consumption and abuse is very 
concerning . Underage alcohol consumption is already a big problem 
in our state. 

Th irty four b i l ls in twenty four states have been introd uced in the 201 5 
leg islative session. I wou ld l i ke North Dakota to fol low what many 
other states-includ ing South Carol ina, Lou isiana, and Utah-have 
done or are in the process of doing by banning th is substance. 

I wou ld l i ke us to be proactive rather than having to react to a problem 
in 2 years. 

The language of the original b i l l  was amended by the House Judiciary 
Committee and has the support of the Attorney General's office. 

I would ask for your Com m ittee's support as wel l  in th is very 
important piece of leg islation. 

Thank you.  

I stand for any q uestions. 
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Title. 
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 3 \ l t l 1 t; 
Senator Casper 

March 10, 2015 t-Y6 /~~ ~ 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1464 

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to create and 
enact section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the prohibition of 
powdered alcohol products . 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

SECTION 1. Section 5-01-22 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and 
enacted as follows: 

5-01-22. Powdered alcohol products prohibited - Penalty - Exceptions. 

As used in this section. "powdered alcohol product" means any alcohol 
prepared or sold in a powder form for either direct use or reconstitution in a 
liquid beverage or food. 

A person may not sell, offer to sell, purchase, offer to purchase, possess. Ji 
or consume a powdered alcohol product. t',

1
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.yv ~s 
A violation of this section is a class B misdemeanor. ( 

This section does not a I to the use of owdered alcohol roducts b a: 

~ Health care provider that operates primarily for the purpose of 
conducting scientific research; 

b. State institution; 

.Q.,, Private college or university; or 

Q,_ Pharmaceutical or biotechnology company." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0889.02001 




